CODE OF ETHICS TOWN OF LITCHFIELD



Adopted at Town Meeting January 11, 1990

Published in the Litchfield Enquirer, January 18, 1990

Effective February 2, 1990

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE ONE.	Declaration	
ARTICLE TWO.	Definitions	1
Section	1. Agency	1 2
Section	2. Confidencial information	2
Section	3. Constitution	3
Section		3
Section		3
Section	6. OILICIAL	
Section		1
Section		
ARTICLE THREE	E. Application	4
Section	1. Generally	4
Section	2 Personsibilities of Public Office	4
Section	3. Fair and Equal Treatment	5
Section	4. Political Influence	2
Section	5 Confidential Information	5
Section	6 Gifts and Favors	6
Section	7 Financial or Private Interests	1
Section	a Appearances Before Town Agencies	8
Section		9
ARTICLE FOUR	. Enforcement	10
Section	1. Establishment of Board of Ethics;	10
	Membership; Appointment; Terms	
Section	2. Expenses and Compensation	11
Section	3 Organization; Rules of Procedure and	3.0
	Regulations	12
Section	4. Meetings; Quorums; Records and Minutes;	
	Confidentiality	12
Section	5. Powers and Duties; Procedures	13
ARTICLE FIVE	. Miscellaneous Provisions	19
Section	1. Effective Date	19
Section	2 Amendments	21
Section	Notice to Officials and Consultants	20
Section		2
200020		

Code of Ethics

ARTICLE ONE. DECLARATION. BE IT ORDAINED:

The proper operation of democratic government requires that public officers and employees be independent, impartial, and responsible to the people of Litchfield; that government decisions and policy be made in the proper channels of governmental structure; that public office not be used for personal or private gain; and that the public have confidence in the integrity of government. In recognition of these goals, a Code of Ethics is hereby established for Officials and Consultants of the Town of Litchfield, as are hereinafter The purpose of this Code is to establish ethical standards of conduct by setting forth those actions that are in conflict with the best interest of the Town, and by directing disclosure of any financial or personal beneficial interest in matters affecting the Town as set forth in this article.

ARTICLE TWO. DEFINITIONS.

For the purposes of this Code the following terms shall have the indicated meanings:

Section 1. Agency shall include all permanent and temporary Boards, Commissions, Authorities, Agencies,

Committees and Departments of the Town, including the Board of Education and any Regional Boards, but excluding Town Meetings.

Section 2. <u>Confidential information</u> shall mean any information not a matter of public record which is obtained by reason of an official's position or employment with the Town.

Section 3. Consultant shall mean any independent contractor or professional person or firm who is engaged by and receives compensation from any Agency and who is in a position to influence any decision of any Agency or any Official. Persons engaged by and receiving compensation from other entities, such as the state or federal government, who are in a position to influence any decision of any Agency or any Official shall be guided by this Code, and the Board of Ethics, upon complaint or on its own motion, may make recommendations to the entity employing such persons.

Section 4. Financial Interest shall mean any interest of substantial value which is not common to the interest of other citizens of the Town and shall include the financial interests of an Official's immediate family. The Board of Ethics shall issue guidelines from time to time delineating financial interests deemed to be of no substantial value in order to avoid de minimus situations.

Section 5. <u>Immediate Family</u> shall mean all persons residing in an Official's household and shall also mean an Official's spouse and children, whether or not residing in an Official's household.

Section 6. Official shall include all persons holding elected or appointed offices of the Town or of its agencies, including members of the Board of Education, whether paid or unpaid, and shall include all paid employees of the Town or its agencies, whether full time or part time.

Section 7. <u>Private Interest</u> shall mean an interest which is not shared in common by the public and shall include the interests of an Official's immediate family.

Section 8. <u>Transaction</u> shall include the offer, sale, or furnishing of any real or personal property, material, supplies or services by any person, directly or indirectly, as vendor, prime contractor, subcontractor or otherwise, for the use and benefit of the Town for a valuable consideration.

ARTICLE THREE: APPLICATION

Section 1: Generally.

The Code of Ethics of the Town of Litchfield shall govern Officials and Consultants of the Town of Litchfield.

Section 2: Responsibilities of Public Office.

It shall be the responsibility of officials to carry out their duties to the best of their abilities and with the highest moral and ethical standards, regardless

of personal consideration. Their conduct should at all times be for the public good and within the bounds of the law, should be above reproach, and should avoid a conflict between public and private interests and responsibilities.

Section 3: Fair and Equal Treatment.

And the state of t

to 1981 P. P. Constitution to be a Constitution of the

alle also the transfer of the second state of the

norths a bottle with the section of the section of

and of the state o

No official shall grant or accept any special consideration, treatment, favor or advantage beyond that which is generally available to all residents and/or taxpayers of the city.

TOLLA

Section 4: Political Influence.

No Difficial shall promise an appointment or the use of his influence to obtain an appointment to any municipal position as a reward for any political activity.

Section 5: Confidential Information.

operation to the way of the transfer to the tr

vas Saltavia de Adive Edurant de Bristalie

Except as may otherwise be required by law, no Official or Consultant shall disclose, without proper authorization, confidential information concerning the

property, government business or affairs of the Town or of the Board of Education, or of other persons which has come to his attention in the course of his official duties; nor shall any Official or Consultant use such information or special knowledge to advance the financial or other private interest of himself or others. This section shall not be used to restrict the release of information that is properly available to the public.

Section 6: Gifts and Favors.

Bandy by the state of the contract of the cont

toxogs miljest file of the Lieve File 1980b

No Official or Consultant or members of their immediate family, nor any Agency, employee organization or group of employees shall accept anything in excess of \$50.00 in value or solicit anything of value whether in the form of a gift or promise of a gift from any person, firm or corporation, which to his knowledge is interested, directly or indirectly, in business dealings with the Town or Board of Education; nor shall any such person accept any such gifts that may tend to influence him in the discharge of his duties or in granting any improper service, favor or thing of value. If it is impossible or inappropriate to refuse the gift, the First Selectman shall be notified of the gift's receipt and it shall then be turned over to an appropriate public or

charitable institution. For purposes of this section, a erein, duch or leve gift shall include the receipt of any goods or services visitely or purities for an amount less than the amount charged to the general order the end action public or loans at less than a commercially reasonable TERRESCELON OF T interest rate. For purposes of this section, business dealings shall include transactions which are contemplated, under negotiation, pending completion, or This prohibition shall not include gifts or completed. a Town Aranole favors between family members. This prohibition shall no useque lista inadiuso also not include a political contribution otherwise to neor than the rown or reported or required by law.

The Board of Ethics shall issue guidelines from time to time to delineate gifts and favors deemed to be of no substantial value in order to avoid de minimus situations.

of education to To Service agency's call to Clerk of maid Agency energy energy energy energy

Section 7. Financial or Private Interests. No Official, nor an Official's immediate family, shall have a financial or personal interest in any transaction or contract with the Town, or in the sale of real estate, material, supplies or services to the Town, on which such Official may be called to act upon in his official capacity. Such Official shall disclose on the record of the agency or to his superior or other authority the

existence of an interest therein. Such official shall not vote upon, communicate, publicly or privately, with any person who will participate in such action or otherwise participate in the transaction or contract.

Section 8. Appearances Before Town Acencies.

behalf of any person or party, other than the Town or the Board of Education, before any Agency in connection with any cause, proceeding application or other matter in which he has a financial or private interest, as defined in this Code, without first making full disclosure of such interest to that Agency, such disclosure to be noted in the official minutes or record of the agency's meeting. The Secretary or Clerk of said Agency shall notify the First Selectmen and the Chairman of the Board of Ethics in writing of such disclosure within five (5) business days.

prohibited from appearing on behalf of any person or party other than the Town or the Board of Education before any Agency regarding a matter in which he participated personally and substantially during his term of service.

c. Subsections a and b of this Section 8 shall not prohibit any current or former Official or Consultant from appearing before any Agency on his own behalf or on the behalf of members of his family living in his household or to express his own opinion.

Section 9. Outside and Future Employment.

asolvisa to Thanyoty on taband does not be

to be a first the constant of the constant of

sierbitet fir to bly to bly to the delicals

a. No Official shall engage in or accept private employment or render services for private interests when the employment or services are incompatible with the proper discharge of his official duties or would tend to impair his independence of judgment or action in the performance of his official duty. While rendering services for the Town or Board of Education, Consultant shall engage in employment or render services for interests other than the Town or the Board of ablantables in the second of house of the con-Education when such employment or services are incompatible with the proper discharge of his contractual Avit 13 hear 14 more of than author C. Attookreen Mich or consulting duties or would tend to impair his independence of judgment on matters for which he is to bused out ve benalthou bus named of engaged for the Town or Board of Education. coult and ven cordance with weconnecticut

b. No Official shall solicit or negotiate for or promise to accept future employment in a manner which is incompatible with his official duties and the discharge

thereof.

c. Any Official or Consultant who shall desire to accept current or future private employment or render current or future services to private interests may request an advisory opinion from the Board of Ethics stating whether or not such employment or services violate subsection a. of this section.

ing to be s and due

and Consultants employed by, serving a term of office, or providing services to the Town thirty (30) days after the effective date of this Code.

page of the second seco

To drampbut 10 sonal ne opni

ARTICLE FOUR: ENFORCEMENT by such a solesia

Section 1. Establishment of Board of Ethics; Membership;

Appointment; Terms.

There is hereby created a Board of Ethics which shall be charged with the administration of this Code. The Board of Ethics shall be comprised of five (5) resident electors and one (1) alternate, to be nominated by the First Selectman and confirmed by the Board of Selectmen in accordance with Connecticut General Statutes Section 9-167a. Of the five (5) members initially appointed, three (3) shall be appointed

for a term of three (3) years and two (2) for a term of two (2) years. The alternate shall be appointed initially for a term of three (3) years. All All subsequent appointments to the board shall be for a term of three to befor brook flag to brook offer anoidations sale and

(3) years. Any regular member having served for six (6) years in succession shall be ineligible for reappointment to the board. For individuals filling a vacancy, successive years of service will commence with the next appointment period. The alternate shall serve as a regular member in the absence or disqualification of a regular member and shall fill the unexpired portion of

A THE STREET AND ADDRESS OF THE PROPERTY OF TH

CHARLED OF THE

the term of any vacancy.

As money that is the productional approved your calculation

The state of the s Section 2. Expenses and Compensation. The members and in block of Lunda) alternate of the Board shall serve without compensation as some for their services. In the performance of its duties and (C) object of the composite in the exercise of its powers the Board shall not incur any expense in excess of the funds appropriated for such Modern The Manager of the purposes by the Town Meeting.

weathers to constitute a quorum. The Board shall only Conduct business it a quorum is busent. The Board ahall

12 6

keen minucey of its meatings.

Section 3. Organization; Rules of Procedure and Regulations.

The Board shall elect a Chairman and a Secretary.

The Board shall elect a Chairman and a Secretary.

The Board shall adopt rules of procedure and regulations which it deems necessary to carry out the intent of this Code, and the same and any amendments thereto shall be filed in the Office of the Town Clerk and available for

filed in the Office of the Town Clerk and available for public inspection. The Board shall adopt such rules and regulations no later than six months after this Code shall become effective.

e term of anywacanovil

to coltrol rigranu and lilly lient brancasom rains

Section 4. <u>Meetings: Quorums: Records and Minutes:</u>

<u>Confidentiality.</u>

Meetings shall be held at the call of the Chairman and at such other times as the Board shall determine.

The presence of three (3) members at a meeting shall constitute a quorum, except that any meeting whose purpose is to hear a complaint of violation of this Code against an official or consultant shall have five (5) members to constitute a quorum. The Board shall only conduct business if a quorum is present. The Board shall keep minutes of its meetings.

initia appointed, three (3) and secondaries

Section 5. Powers and Duties; Procedures.

a. Advisory Opinions and Guidelines.

The Board shall render written advisory opinions with respect to the applicability of this Code to specific situations to any Agency, Official or Consultant pursuant to a written request or upon its own initiative. Any request or opinion, the disclosure of which invades the personal privacy of any individual (as that term is used in Connecticut General Statutes Section 1-19(b)(2) by the Connecticut Freedom of Information Commission and the courts), shall be kept confidential. The Board may make available to the public such advisory opinions which do not invade an individual's privacy and take other appropriate steps in an effort to increase public awareness of this Code.

The Board may also issue written guidelines delineating the scope of the provisions of this Code, upon written request or upon its own initiative. The Board shall file such guidelines with the Office of the Town Clerk and may take other appropriate steps in an effort to increase the public's awareness of this Code.

b. Complaints.

taxpayer, Agency, department, board or organization of the Town may file a complaint alleging a violation of this Code. Such complaints must be in writing and signed by the individual making the complaint. The complaint shall state, in addition to the acts of an Official or Consultant about which complaint is being made, a summary of the evidence upon which the complainant will rely to substantiate such complaint. In summarizing the evidence, the complainant need not identify any witnesses, other than himself, who would testify, but only summarize the nature and content of that testimony. The Board may also initiate such a complaint.

(2) Notice.

All notices required by this Section 5b shall be sent by registered or certified mail, or by any manner which service of process may be made. The Board shall also adopt specific procedures by which a complainant shall notify the Board of its complaint and forward the complaint to the Board. The Board shall file such procedures with the Office of the Town Clerk.

(3) Confidentiality.

All complaints, responses thereto, hearings, or other proceedings and the result thereof shall remain confidential as provided by Connecticut General Statutes

Section 1-19(b)(2) unless the person about whom such complaint was made gives an authorization to the Board to release such matters, the same being hereby declared to be confidential in order to provide reasonable protection to the reputation or character of said official.

(4) Initial Hearing.

Within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the complaint, the Board shall conduct an initial hearing at which no less than five (5) members are present on the complaint to determine if:

- (A) the respondent is an Official or Consultant;
- (B) the alleged acts, if proven, would constitute a violation of this Code;
- (C) there appears to be sufficient evidence to substantiate such complaint; and
- (D) the Official or Consultant, and alleged acts, are covered by a collective bargaining agreement, personal employment contract, or other agreement or policy, the disciplinary provisions of which may conflict with the provisions

of this Code.

The Board shall then:

- (A) Dismiss the complaint if it finds that one or more of the requirements (A) through (C) above are not present;
- (B) Schedule a full hearing to begin within sixty (60) days on the complaint if the Board finds that requirements (A) through (D) above are present; or
- (C) Decide to take one of the following courses of action if the Board finds that requirements (A) through (D) above are present:
 - (i) Proceed with its hearing;
 - (ii) Refer the complaint to the appropriate body mentioned in such agreement for appropriate action; or
 - (iii) Defer action until procedures of such agreement are completed.

The Board shall notify in writing the complainant and respondent of the action taken within ten (10) calendar days of such action.

(5) Hearings.

If the Board determines a hearing is required pursuant to Section 5b(4) above, the Board shall set a hearing date on the complaint. Said hearing date shall not be more than thirty (30) days after notice is provided to the respondent. Such hearing shall be conducted under the Board's rules and regulations, which shall include the following: oral evidence shall be taken under oath; the parties shall have the right: (A) to be represented by legal counsel; (B) to subpoena and present evidence; (C) to examine and cross-examine witnesses. The hearing shall be closed to the public unless the respondent requests otherwise.

If The Board chooses not to have the hearing recorded and a transcription made, the respondent shall have the right to record and transcribe the hearing at his own expense.

(6) <u>Memorandum of Decision and Recommended</u> Actions.

The Board shall render a Memorandum of Decision and forward such Memorandum to the respondent within thirty (30) days of the conclusion of the Board's hearing. Such Memorandum shall address each itemized charge within the complaint, summarize the issues and

findings of facts pertaining to each charge, determine whether a violation of this Code has occurred and make recommendations based upon its findings. If the Board determines a violation has occurred, the recommended action may include private reprimand, public censure termination or suspension of employment, removal or suspension from appointive office, or termination of contractual status. Such recommended action shall not constitute a unilateral change in conditions of employment in cases coming within the scope of a collective bargaining agreement, personal employment contract, or other agreement or policy.

(7) Filing of Memorandum of Decision.

If the Board finds that a violation of this Code has occurred, the Board shall file its Memorandum of Decision with the Board of Selectmen unless the respondent is within the jurisdiction of the Board of Education. If the respondent is within the jurisdiction of the Board of Education, the Board shall file its Memorandum of Decision with the Board of Education. If the respondent is a Consultant, the Board shall also file its Memorandum of Decision with the contracting agency.

The Board of Selectmen or Board of Education shall review the Memorandum of Decision in executive session, unless an open hearing is requested by the respondent. The Board of Selectmen or Board of Education may:

- (A) Accept the findings and recommendations as presented; or
- (B) Not accept the findings; or
- (C) Accept the findings of the board, but not accept the recommendations as to disposition, in which case the Board of Selectmen or Board of Education shall dispose of the matter as it sees fit.

ARTICLE FIVE. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

Section One. Effective Date.

Once adopted, this Code shall become effective in the same manner as that required for all ordinances adopted by the Town of Litchfield. This Code shall govern situations, conduct and transactions occurring after its effective date.

Section Two. Amendments.

Amendments to this Code shall be adopted and become effective in the same manner as that required for all ordinances of the Town of Litchfield. Such amendments shall govern situations, conduct and transactions occurring after such amendment's effective date. Amendments, once effective, shall govern any pending or subsequent requests for advisory opinions or guidelines before said Board.

Section Three. Notice to Officials and Consultants.

Once adopted, copies of this Code and all subsequent amendments shall be provided to all current Officials and Consultants. Copies of this Code with any amendments thereto shall be provided to future Officials upon achieving Official status.

All contracts entered into between any Agency and a Consultant shall include this Code of Ethics as a part thereof.

Ď.

Section Four. Severability.

If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this article, or any part thereof, is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid, or ineffective by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions of this article or any part thereof.